
          

 

 

PENTATHLON 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT 

DISTRICT 
 

MIAMI-DADE COUNTY 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

MARCH 9, 2023 
6:00 P.M. 

 

 

 
 

 

 

Special District Services, Inc. 
8785 SW 165th Avenue, Suite 200 

Miami, FL 33193 
 

www.pentathloncdd.org 
786.347.2700 ext. 2027 Telephone 

877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



AGENDA 
 PENTATHLON COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Conference Room of Signature Flight Support  
14150 SW 129th Street 
Miami, Florida 33186 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
March 9, 2023 

6:00 p.m. 
 
 

A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication……………………………………………………………………………………Page 1  

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Consider Resolution No. 2023-01 – Declaring Vacancies (Seats #3 and #4)………………………….Page 2 

E. Consider Resignation (Ana Ibarra/Seat #5; Effective 2/14/2023)……………………………………..Page 4 

F. Discussion Regarding Vacancies in Seats 3, 4, and 5 and Appointment to Fill Vacancies 

G. Administer Oath of Office and Review New Board Member Duties and Responsibilities 

H. Election of Officers 
 
• Chairperson 
• Vice Chairperson 
• Secretary/Treasurer 
• Assistant Secretaries 

 
I. Additions or Deletions to Agenda  

J. Comments from the Public for Items Not on the Agenda 

K. Approval of Minutes  

1. November 10, 2022 Regular Board Meeting……………………………………………………..Page 5 

L. Old Business 

1. Staff Report, as Required 

M. New Business 

1. Consider Resolution No. 2023-02 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Proposed Budget ……..Page 7 

2. Consider Engineering Updated Rates Request (Alvarez Engineers)……………………………..Page 14 

3. Consider Adjustment to District Counsel Fee Structure………………………………………….Page 16 

N. Administrative Matters 

O. Board Members Comments 

P. Adjourn 
 



Page 1



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-01 
 

 A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
PENTATHLON COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
DECLARING VACANCIES ON THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
PURSUANT TO SECTION 190.006(3)(b), FLORIDA STATUTES; 
AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of Section 190.006, Florida Statutes, the 

members of the Board of Supervisors (the “District Board”) of the Pentathlon Community 

Development District (the “District”) are to be elected by the qualified electors of the District at 

a general election to be held on November 8, 2023 (the “General Election”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the District provided published notice of the qualifying period for election 

to the District Board at least two (2) weeks prior to the start of the qualifying period for the 

General Election, as required by Section 190.006(3)(b), Florida Statutes; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Miami-Dade County Supervisor of Elections has confirmed that at the 

close of the qualifying period for election to the District Board, no elector qualified for Seat #3 

or Seat #4, to be filled in the General Election; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 190.006(3)(b), Florida Statutes, the District is required 

to declare the seats to be filled by the election to which no qualified elector has qualified as 

vacant and to appoint a qualified elector to fill each such vacancy within 90 days of the second 

Tuesday following the General Election. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE PENTATHLON COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, THAT: 

  
1. The recitals above are true and correct and are hereby made a part of this Resolution.  

 
2. The District Board hereby declares Seat #3 and Seat #4 to be vacant, effective on the 

second Tuesday following the General Election.  

 
3. The District Board shall appoint a qualified elector to Seat #3 and Seat #4 within 90 

days of the second Tuesday following the General Election, as required by Section 

190.006(3)(b), Florida Statutes.  Until such appointment, the incumbent board member 

in such seat shall remain in office. 

Page 2



 
4. This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its passage and adoption.  

 
PASSED AND ADOPTED this 9th day of March, 2023 by the Board of Supervisors of the 

Pentathlon Community Development District.  

 
 
ATTEST: PENTATHLON COMMUNITY 

DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
_______________________________ _________________________________ 
Secretary / Assistant Secretary  Chair / Vice Chair 
  

Page 3



Page 4



 
 

Page 1 of 2 
 

PENTATHLON COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

NOVEMBER 10, 2022 
 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
District Manager Nancy Nguyen called the November 10, 2022, Regular Board Meeting of the 
Pentathlon Community Development District (the “District”) to order at 6:04 p.m. in the Conference 
Room of the Signature Flight Support Building located at 14150 SW 129th Street, Miami, Florida 33186. 
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Ms. Nguyen presented proof of publication that notice of the Regular Board Meeting had been published 
in the Miami Daily Business Review on September 30, 2022, as part of the District’s Fiscal Year 
2022/2023 Regular Meeting Schedule, as legally required. 
 
C. ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
Ms. Nguyen determined that the attendance of Chairwoman Grissobelle Reyes-Obando, Vice 
Chairwoman Ana Ibarra and Supervisors Michael Hunt (who arrived via conference call at 6:11 p.m.), 
Julio Cesar Obando, and Andre Goins constituted a quorum and it was in order to proceed with the 
meeting. 
 
Staff in attendance included: District Manager Nancy Nguyen of Special District Services, Inc.; and 
District Counsel Gregory George of Billing, Cochran, Lyles, Mauro & Ramsey, P.A. 
 
D. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
 
There were no additions or deletions to the agenda. 
 
E. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR ITEMS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 
There were no comments for items not on the agenda. 
 
F. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1. April 14, 2022, Regular Board Meeting & Public Hearing 
 

Ms. Nguyen presented the April 14, 2022, Regular Board Meeting and Public Hearing minutes and asked 
if there were any comments and/or changes. 
 
There being no changes and/or comments, a motion was made by Mr. Goins, seconded by Ms. Ibarra 
and unanimously passed approving the April 14, 2022, Regular Board Meeting and Public Hearing 
minutes, as presented. 
 
G. OLD BUSINESS 

1. Update Regarding Blocking of Intersection (SW 157th Avenue & SW 141st Street) 
 
Ms. Nguyen advised that she was notified by the Miami-Dade Public Works Department (Public Works) 
that the traffic study had been completed. The traffic study did not warrant the installation of signs; 

Page 5



 
 

Page 2 of 2 
 

however, based on the number of traffic accidents reported by the District at this intersection, they have 
agreed to install signage on the south bound lane of SW 157th Avenue indicating that the intersection 
should not be blocked.  Ms. Nguyen further explained that Public Works advised that if the issue persists, 
the police department should be contacted.  No additional information on this item was required at this 
time.  
 
H. NEW BUSINESS 

1. Consider Resolution No. 2022-04 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2021/2022 Amended Budget 
 
Resolution No. 2022-04 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-04 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
PENTATHLON COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
AUTHORIZING AND ADOPTING AN AMENDED FINAL FISCAL YEAR 
2021/2022 BUDGET (“AMENDED BUDGET”), PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 
189, FLORIDA STATUTES; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
Ms. Nguyen provided an explanation for the document and indicated that there was an operating fund 
balance of approximately $309,000 at the end of the fiscal year. A discussion ensued after which: 
 
A motion was made by Ms. Ibarra, seconded by Mr. Obando and unanimously passed adopting 
Resolution No. 2022-04, as presented, thereby setting the amended/revised budget for the 2021/2022 
fiscal year. 
 
I. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 

1. Staff Report, as Required 
 
Ms. Nguyen stated that unless an emergency were to arise, the Board would not need to meet until March 
9, 2023. 

 
J. BOARD MEMBER & STAFF CLOSING COMMENTS 

 
There were no further comments from Board Members or District Staff. 
 
K. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, a motion was made by Ms. Reyes-Obando, 
seconded by Mr. Goins adjourning the Regular Board Meeting at approximately 6:14 p.m. There were 
no objections. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________   _________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary    Chairperson/Vice-Chairperson 

Page 6



RESOLUTION NO. 2023-02 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
PENTATHLON COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
APPROVING A PROPOSED BUDGET AND NON-AD VALOREM 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023/2024; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors (the “Board”) of the Pentathlon Community 
Development District (the “District”) is required by Chapter 190.008, Florida Statutes, to 
approve a Proposed Budget for each fiscal year; and, 
 
 WHEREAS, the Proposed Budget including the Assessments for Fiscal Year 2023/2024 
has been prepared and considered by the Board. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE PENTATHLON COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT THAT: 
 

Section 1. The Proposed Budget including the Assessments for Fiscal Year 
2023/2024 attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is approved and adopted. 
 

Section 2.      A Public Hearing is hereby scheduled for May 11, 2023 at 6:00 p.m. in the 
Conference Room at Signature Flight Support located at 14150 SW 129th Street, Miami, Florida 
33186, for the purpose of receiving public comments on the Proposed Fiscal Year 2023/2024 
Budget. 

 
 

PASSED, ADOPTED and EFFECTIVE this 9th day of March, 2023. 
 

 
ATTEST: PENTATHLON 
 COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
By:  By:  
 Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairperson/Vice Chairperson 

Page 7



   Pentathlon
  Community Development District

        Proposed Budget For
        Fiscal Year 2023/2024

      October 1, 2023 - September 30, 2024

Page 8



CONTENTS

I PROPOSED BUDGET

II DETAILED PROPOSED BUDGET

III DETAILED PROPOSED DEBT SERVICE FUND BUDGET

IV ASSESSMENT COMPARISON

Page 9



 PROPOSED BUDGET
PENTATHLON COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

FISCAL YEAR 2023/2024
OCTOBER 1, 2023 - SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

FISCAL YEAR 
2023/2024

REVENUES BUDGET
ADMINISTRATIVE ASSESSMENTS 70,530
MAINTENANCE/INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENT ASSESSMENTS 9,042
DEBT ASSESSMENTS 213,636
INTEREST INCOME 360

TOTAL REVENUES 293,568$                                                                                         

EXPENDITURES
MAINTENANCE/INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS
IMPROVEMENT CONTINGENCY 7,000
ENGINEERING/INSPECTIONS 1,500
TOTAL MAINTENANCE/INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS 8,500$                                                                                             

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENDITURES
SUPERVISOR FEES 6,000
PAYROLL TAXES (EMPLOYER) 480
MANAGEMENT 33,648
SECRETARIAL 3,000
LEGAL 8,500
ASSESSMENT ROLL 6,000
AUDIT FEES 3,700
INSURANCE 6,600
LEGAL ADVERTISING 600
MISCELLANEOUS 850
POSTAGE 225
OFFICE SUPPLIES 500
DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 175
TRUSTEE FEES 3,600
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE FEE 350
WEBSITE MANAGEMENT 1,500

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENDITURES 75,728$                                                                                           

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 84,228$                                                                                           

REVENUES LESS EXPENDITURES 209,340$                                                                                         

BOND PAYMENTS (200,818)

BALANCE 8,522$                                                                                             

COUNTY APPRAISER & TAX COLLECTOR FEE (5,864)                                                                                              
DISCOUNTS FOR EARLY PAYMENTS (11,728)                                                                                            

EXCESS/ (SHORTFALL) (9,070)$                                                                                            

CARRYOVER FROM PRIOR YEAR 9,070

NET EXCESS/ (SHORTFALL) -$                                                                                                 

3/1/2023  1:12 PM I  Page 10



DETAILED PROPOSED BUDGET
PENTATHLON COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

FISCAL YEAR 2023/2024
OCTOBER 1, 2023 - SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR 

2021/2022 2022/2023 2023/2024

REVENUES ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET COMMENTS

ADMINISTRATIVE ASSESSMENTS 69,216 68,772 70,530 Expenditures Less Interest & Carryover/.94

MAINTENANCE/INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENT ASSESSMENTS 10,639 10,638 9,042 Expenditures/.94

DEBT ASSESSMENTS 213,571 213,808 213,636 Bond Payments/.94

INTEREST INCOME 27 360 360 Interest Projected At $30 Per Month

TOTAL REVENUES 293,453$           293,578$            293,568$              

EXPENDITURES

MAINTENANCE/INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS

IMPROVEMENT CONTINGENCY 0 9,000 7,000 Improvement Contingency

ENGINEERING/INSPECTIONS 975 1,000 1,500 $500 Increase From 2022/2023 Budget

TOTAL MAINTENANCE/INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS 975$                  10,000$              8,500$                  

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENDITURES

SUPERVISOR FEES 1,800 6,000 6,000 No Change From 2022/2023 Budget

PAYROLL TAXES (EMPLOYER) 138 480 480 Projected At 8% Of Supervisor Fees

MANAGEMENT 31,728 32,676 33,648 CPI Adjustment (Capped At 3%)

SECRETARIAL 3,000 3,000 3,000 No Change From 2022/2023 Budget

LEGAL 5,550 8,000 8,500 $500 Increase From 2022/2023 Budget

ASSESSMENT ROLL 6,000 6,000 6,000 No Change From 2022/2023 Budget

AUDIT FEES 3,500 3,600 3,700 $100 Increase From 2022/2023 Budget

INSURANCE 5,706 6,200 6,600 Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Expenditure Was $6,134

LEGAL ADVERTISING 457 600 600 No Change From 2022/2023 Budget

MISCELLANEOUS 707 850 850 No Change From 2022/2023 Budget

POSTAGE 97 225 225 No Change From 2022/2023 Budget

OFFICE SUPPLIES 222 525 500 $25 Decrease From 2022/2023 Budget

DUES & SUBSCRIPTIONS 175 175 175 No Change From 2022/2023 Budget

TRUSTEE FEES 3,400 3,500 3,600 $100 Increase From 2022/2023 Budget

CONTINUING DISCLOSURE FEE 350 350 350 No Change From 2022/2023 Budget

WEBSITE MANAGEMENT 1,500 1,500 1,500 No Change From 2022/2023 Budget

TOTAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENDITURES 64,330$             73,681$              75,728$                

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 65,305$             83,681$              84,228$                

REVENUES LESS EXPENDITURES 228,148$           209,897$            209,340$              

BOND PAYMENTS (203,516) (200,955) (200,818) 2024 P & I Payments Less Earned Interest

BALANCE 24,632$             8,942$                8,522$                  

COUNTY APPRAISER & TAX COLLECTOR FEE (2,824)                (5,864)                 (5,864)                   Two Percent Of Total Assessment Roll

DISCOUNTS FOR EARLY PAYMENTS (10,985)              (11,728)               (11,728)                 Four Percent Of Total Assessment Roll

EXCESS/ (SHORTFALL) 10,823$             (8,650)$               (9,070)$                 

CARRYOVER FROM PRIOR YEAR 0 8,650 9,070 Carryover From Prior Year

NET EXCESS/ (SHORTFALL) 10,823$             -$                    -$                      

3/1/2023  1:12 PM II  Page 11



DETAILED PROPOSED DEBT SERVICE FUND BUDGET
PENTATHLON COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT

FISCAL YEAR 2023/2024
OCTOBER 1, 2023 - SEPTEMBER 30, 2024

FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR

2021/2022 2022/2023 2023/2024

REVENUES ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET COMMENTS

Interest Income 982 25 100 Projected Interest For 2023/2024

NAV Tax Collection 203,516 200,955 200,818 2024 P & I Payments Less Earned Interest

Total Revenues 204,498$                   200,980$                   200,918$                   

EXPENDITURES

Principal Payments 115,000 125,000 130,000 Principal Payment Due In 2024

Interest Payments 82,936 75,980 70,918 Interest Payments Due In 2024

Total Expenditures 197,936$                   200,980$                   200,918$                   

Excess/ (Shortfall) 6,562$                       -$                               -$                                

Original Par Amount = $2,780,000 Annual Principal Payments Due = November 1st

Interest Rate = 1.25% - 4.5% Annual Interest Payments Due = May 1st & November 1st

Issue Date = April 2012

Maturity Date = November 2033

Par Amount As Of 1/1/23  = $1,720,000

Series 2012 Refunding Bonds Information

3/1/2023  1:12 PM III  Page 12



Pentathlon Community Development District
Assessment Comparison

Original Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year

Projected 2020/2021 2021/2022 2022/2023 2023/2024

 Assessment*  Assessment*  Assessment*  Assessment* Projected Assessment*

Administrative 144.88$                136.28$          134.29$             133.80$             137.22$                             

Maintenance/Infrastructure -$                     20.70$            20.70$               20.70$               17.60$                               
Debt 505.12$                413.52$          415.50$             415.97$             415.64$                             

Total 650.00$                570.50$          570.49$             570.47$             570.46$                             

* Assessments Include the Following :

4% Discount for Early Payments 

1% County Tax Collector Fee

1% County Property Appraiser Fee

Community Information:

Total Units 514

3/1/2023  1:12 PM IV  
Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17


	Pentathlon Community Development District - March 9, 2023 Regular Board Meeting Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	Consider Resolution No. 2023-01 - Declaring Vacancies (Seats #3 and #4)
	Consider Resignation (Ana Ibarra/Seat #5; Effective 2/14/2023)
	November 10, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	Consider Resolution No. 2023-02 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2023/2024 Proposed Budget
	Consider Engineering Updated Rates Request (Alvarez Engineers)
	Consider Adjustment to District Counsel Fee Structure




